
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 

MARCH 26, 2018 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, March 26, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, 
Cedarburg, WI, in the second floor Council Chambers.  
             

REVISED AGENDA 
(Addition of Item 8. H) 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER   

 
2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
 

Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members   
John Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick 
Verhaalen, Patricia Thome, and Mike O’Keefe 

5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - March 12, 2018 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 

 
* A. Accept and refer to Plan Commission the rezoning petition from S. Duane 

Stroebel, Jr./Allison Mantel, D.D.S., MS to rezone the two parcels at the 
northeast corner of Evergreen Boulevard and Pioneer Road from RD-1 Two 
Family Residential District to B-4 Office and Service District; and action thereon 

 
* B. Presentation of 2017 Annual Financial Report 
 
* C. Consider allocating funds toward the preliminary design of a business park on 

Highway 60, including acceptance of proposal to complete traffic impact analysis; 
and action thereon 

 
* D. Consider bids received for the 2018 Street and Utility Contract; and action 

thereon 
 
* E. Consider writing off uncollectible receivables in the Risk Management Fund; and 

action thereon 
 

Page 1 of 138



* F. Consider Ordinance No. 2018-04 amending Sec. 11-2-7 of the Municipal Code 
pertaining to the placement of chairs in advance of the annual 4th of July parade; 
and action thereon 

 
* G. Consider payment of bills for the period 03/09/18 through 03/16/18, transfers for 

the period 03/09/18 through 03/17/18, and payroll for the period 02/25/18 through 
03/10/18; and action thereon 

 
* H. Review of 2017 Annual Stormwater Compliance Report; and action thereon 
 
*** H. I. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
    
 1. Consider approval of new Operators License application for the period 

ending June 30, 2018 for Chad M. Bowen  
  
9.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
   
10. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 1. Proclamation – Municipal Treasurers Week – April 15-21, 2018 
 2. Proclamation – Arbor Day, April 27, 2018 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 
 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
 
03/23/18 ckm 

Page 2 of 138

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


 

  CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20180312-1 
                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 
                                                                    March 12, 2018 
        
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 
Monday, March 12, 2018, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 
Chambers.  Mayor Kinzel called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL: Present -  Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members John 

Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick Verhaalen, Patricia 
Thome, Mike O’Keefe 

 
 Vacant - Aldermanic District 5 
                           
                    Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Attorney Michael 

Herbrand, Deputy City Clerk Amy Kletzien, Parks, Recreation & 
Forestry Director Mikko Hilvo, Water Recycling Center 
Superintendent Eric Hackert, 1st Aldermanic District candidate Sara 
Dunstone, 3rd Aldermanic District candidates Kristin Burkart and 
Ryan Hammetter, 7th Aldermanic District candidate Rod Galbraith, 
interested citizens and news media 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Mayor Kinzel’s request, Deputy City Clerk Kletzien verified that notice of this meeting was 
provided to the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, 
to all news media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the 
Wisconsin Open Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their 
input during the citizen comment portion of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Dieffenbach, to approve 
the minutes of the February 26, 2018 meeting as presented.  Motion carried without a negative vote 
with Aldermanic District 5 vacant. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS - None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDER AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE 2018 ANNUAL CONCRETE SIDEWALK 
PROGRAM; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that staff received seven bids for the 2018 concrete 
sidewalk replacement project with the low bid coming from Forward Contractors in the amount of 
$41,450.  The Public Works and Sewerage Commission was scheduled to meet March 8th, but the 
meeting was canceled due to lack of a quorum.  Therefore, this item is brought to the Common 
Council without a recommendation from the Commission.  Staff recommends awarding the 2018 
sidewalk contract to Forward Contractors on the basis of their low bid. 

Page 3 of 138



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180312-2 
March 12, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to award the 
2018 annual concrete sidewalk program to Forward Contractors in the amount of $41,450.  Motion 
carried without a negative vote with Aldermanic District 5 vacant. 
 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2018-07 AUTHORIZING STAFF TO APPLY FOR A DNR 
MUNICIPAL DAM GRANT FOR PENDING REPAIRS TO THE COLUMBIA MILLS AND 
WOOLEN MILLS DAMS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that the Common Council awarded the contract for 
engineering services related to the Woolen Mills dam inspection and preparation of the grant application 
to Graef at the last Common Council meeting.  This resolution will complete the authorization to apply 
for a DNR Municipal Dam Grant for pending repairs to the Columbia Mills and Woolen Mills Dams.  If 
we are successful, the grant would cover 50% of the first $400,000 of eligible repairs, and 25% of costs 
exceeding $400,000.  The work is to be completed by October 31, 2018. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Czarnecki, seconded by Council Member O'Keefe, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2018-07 authorizing staff to apply for a DNR Municipal Dam Grant for pending repairs 
to the Columbia Mills and Woolen Mills Dams.  Motion carried without a negative vote with 
Aldermanic District 5 vacant. 
 
CONSIDER A REQUEST TO CONTRACT FOR REPLACING THREE FLAT ROOFS AT 
THE CEDARBURG WATER RECYCLING CENTER; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Superintendent Hackert explained that the Water Recycling Center is in need of replacing the 
roofing on three main buildings.  Two of the buildings are currently leaking through the ceilings.  
The roofs are all over 15 years old.  He recommends hiring ARC Commercial Contracting Services 
based on their low price of $81,700.  Superintendent Hackert did review the project with ARC to 
make sure they understood the scope of the project based on their bid.  He also checked references 
and he feels comfortable with the contract. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Czarnecki, seconded by Council Member Thome, to accept the 
contract from ARC Commercial Contracting Services for replacing three flat roofs at the Water 
Recycling Center for $81,700.  Motion carried without a negative vote with Aldermanic District 5 
vacant.  
 
CONSIDER APPLICATION OF L&G EXPRESS BAR, LLC, LARRY D. WEIDMANN, 
AGENT, FOR A CLASS “B” BEER AND “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE FOR L&G 
EXPRESS AT N50 W5586 PORTLAND ROAD DUE TO CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP 
FROM A PARTNERSHIP TO AN LLC; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that due to a change in ownership, L&G Express 
Bar is changing from a partnership to an LLC. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, Deputy Clerk Kletzien explained that L&G 
Express will need to pay a pro-rated amount for the remainder of the licensing period under the new 
ownership. 
 

Page 4 of 138



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180312-3 
March 12, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion made by Council Member Verhaalen, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve the 
application of L&G Express Bar, LLC, Larry D. Weidmann, Agent, for a Class “B” Beer and “Class 
B” Liquor License for L&G Express at N50 W5586 Portland Road.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote with Aldermanic District 5 vacant. 
 
CONSIDER REQUEST OF AMBUR VANCE OF AT JJ’S LLC TO AMEND THE 
PREMISE DESCRIPTION OF THE CLASS “B” BEER AND “CLASS B” LIQUOR 
LICENSE OF AT JJ’S AT W62 N559 WASHINGTON AVENUE TO SELL AND SERVE 
ALCOHOL OUTSIDE DURING STRAWBERRY FEST AND WINE AND HARVEST 
FEST; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that the owners of AT JJ’s are seeking permission to 
alter their liquor license premise description to be able to sell and serve alcohol under a tent on the 
street in front of the business during Strawberry Festival and Wine and Harvest Festival. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Czarnecki, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve the 
request of Ambur Vance of AT JJ’s LLC to amend the premise description of the Class “B” Beer 
and “Class B” Liquor license of AT JJ’s at W62 N559 Washington Avenue to sell and serve alcohol 
outside during Strawberry Festival and Wine & Harvest Festival.  Motion carried without a negative 
vote with Aldermanic District 5 vacant. 
 
CONSIDER REQUEST TO USE RECREATION FUND BALANCE FOR YOUTH 
FOOTBALL EQUIPMENT; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Council Member Verhaalen recused himself from this item because he is involved with the 
Cedarburg Dawgs Football program. 
 
Director Hilvo explained that the City of Cedarburg Recreation Department has recently partnered 
with the Cedarburg Dawgs Football program to help develop youth football in Cedarburg.  The 
Dawgs will offer tackle football from 5th – 8th grades.  The Recreation Department will continue 
offering flag football from grades K4- 4th but under the name Cedarburg Dawgs Flag Football.  The 
purpose of this is to unify all levels of youth football and offer positive play for each player in 
Cedarburg from K4 all the way to the high school level.  He also explained that in 2006, the 
Recreation Department was approached by a group of parents to take over the flag football program 
in Cedarburg.  They had been offering it for a couple of years but many of the parents involved had 
children who grew out of the program and no one else was interested in offering it.  The group at 
that time gave all of their equipment (value $3,000) and $2,000 startup funds that they had from the 
previous season.  This allowed the City to offer the program at a reasonable cost to participants.  In 
order for this new tackle football league to be able to provide the best program possible for our 
youth they need equipment that will provide the children the safety they need to participate in the 
program.  The Recreation staff and the Park Board feel that a sponsorship of $5,000 would help 
them accomplish this.  The funds will come out of the Special Recreation Special Revenue account 
which was created for the purpose of funding recreation programs in the community without tax 
support.   
 

Page 5 of 138



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180312-4 
March 12, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, Director Hilvo explained that the Dawgs and 
Colts are similar programs; however, the Dawgs program will provide positive play.  Only one of 
the programs will be playing next year and the two programs will merge. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, Director Hilvo stated that the Town of 
Cedarburg does not want to participate in this program.  Council Member Dieffenbach asked that 
Director Hilvo not give up on trying to include the Town of Cedarburg in joint programs. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, Director Hilvo explained that the Dawgs 
program will follow the same concussion protocol as Cedarburg High School. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen explained that each player will participate in baseline testing that will 
be good for two years.  All coaches will be trained to follow the concussion guidelines. 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to approve 
the request to use $5,000 from the Recreation Fund balance for Youth Football equipment.  Motion 
carried without a negative vote with Aldermanic District 5 vacant. 
 
CONSIDER PAYMENT OF BILLS FOR THE PERIOD 01/23/18 THROUGH 03/01/18, 
TRANSFERS FOR THE PERIOD 02/22/18 THROUGH 03/06/18, AND PAYROLL FOR 
THE PERIOD 02/11/18 THROUGH 02/24/18 AND ACTION THEREON  
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve 
payment of bills for the period 01/23/18 through 03/01/18, transfers for the period 02/22/18 through 
03/06/18, and payroll for the period 02/11/18 through 02/24/18.  Motion carried without a negative 
vote with Aldermanic District 5 vacant. 
 
CONSIDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve a new 
Operators License application for the period ending June 30, 2018 for Nicholas S. Heebsch.  Motion 
carried without a negative vote with Aldermanic District 5 vacant. 
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes is in discussions with the Town of Cedarburg regarding a 
shared phone system with the City of Cedarburg. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS - None 
 
COMMENTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach explained that many trees were lost in the wooded lot on Lincoln 
Drive due to Emerald Ash Borer.  On April 21, Cedarburg Green is hosting a community project to 
plant 100 new trees.  Council Member Thome stated that the Rotary made a significant donation to 
this project.  
 

Page 6 of 138



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180312-5 
March 12, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT - None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
       
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to adjourn the 
meeting at 7:20 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote with Aldermanic District 5 vacant.  
        
      Amy D. Kletzien, MMC/WCPC 
      Deputy City Clerk 

Page 7 of 138



 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE:  March 26, 2018                                            ITEM NO: 8. A. 
 

TITLE:  Accept and refer to Plan Commission the rezoning petition from S. Duane Stroebel, 

Jr/Allison Mantel, D.D.S., MS to rezone the two parcels at the northeast corner of Evergreen 

Boulevard and Pioneer Road from RD-1 Two Family Residential District to B-4 Office and Service 

District; and action thereon. 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  According to Sec. 13-1-183. Review and Recommendation, the Plan 

Commission shall review all proposed changes to the district boundaries or amendments within the 

corporate limits and shall recommend that the petition be granted as requested, modified, or denied. 

The recommendation shall be make at a Plan Commission meeting subsequent to the Common 

Council meeting at which the petition is first submitted and shall be made in writing to the Common 

Council.  

In this instance, property owner Duey Stroebel is under contract to sell the southern two of the three 

sites he owns at the northeast corner of Pioneer Road and Evergreen Boulevard to Dr. Alison Mantel 

for an Orthodontics Clinic. Her plan is to secure the proper zoning now and then follow-up with 

detailed development plans later this year. Dr. Mantel proposes combine these two lots together into 

one and then to construct a 4,000 square foot clinic with supporting onsite parking similar to the 

Today’s Dentistry across the street at W68 N101 Evergreen Boulevard. The Plan Commission will 

review the proposed Rezoning and Land Use Plan amendment at the April meeting and then submit 

its recommendation for your consideration at a future Council meeting.   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Accept the petition and refer it to the Plan Commission for their review and recommendation. 
 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  

N/A 
 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:   

N/A 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Rezoning  Petition 
 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  S. Duey Stroebel/Allison Mantel, D.D.S., MS 
 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

Page 8 of 138



Page 9 of 138



Page 10 of 138



Page 11 of 138



Page 12 of 138



Page 13 of 138



Page 14 of 138



Page 15 of 138



Page 16 of 138



Page 17 of 138



Page 18 of 138



Page 19 of 138



Page 20 of 138



Page 21 of 138



Page 22 of 138



Page 23 of 138



Page 24 of 138



Page 25 of 138



Page 26 of 138



Page 27 of 138



Page 28 of 138



Page 29 of 138



Page 30 of 138



Page 31 of 138



Page 32 of 138



Page 33 of 138



Page 34 of 138



Page 35 of 138



Page 36 of 138



Page 37 of 138



Page 38 of 138



Page 39 of 138



Page 40 of 138



Page 41 of 138



Page 42 of 138



Page 43 of 138



Page 44 of 138



Page 45 of 138



Page 46 of 138



Page 47 of 138



Page 48 of 138



Page 49 of 138



Page 50 of 138



Page 51 of 138



Page 52 of 138



Page 53 of 138



Page 54 of 138



Page 55 of 138



Page 56 of 138



Page 57 of 138



Page 58 of 138



Page 59 of 138



Page 60 of 138



Page 61 of 138



Page 62 of 138



Page 63 of 138



Page 64 of 138



Page 65 of 138



Page 66 of 138



Page 67 of 138



Page 68 of 138



Page 69 of 138



Page 70 of 138



Page 71 of 138



Page 72 of 138



Page 73 of 138



Page 74 of 138



Page 75 of 138



Page 76 of 138



Page 77 of 138



Page 78 of 138



Page 79 of 138



Page 80 of 138



Page 81 of 138



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:     March 26, 2018                                                         ITEM NO:  8. C. 
                           
TITLE:  Consider allocating funds toward the preliminary design of a business park on Highway 60, including 
acceptance of proposal to complete traffic impact analysis; and action thereon 
 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:   The Highway 60 business park is closer to a reality due to the construction on the east 
side of Sheboygan Road.  Discussions have started on its future and marketing materials have been mailed out.  
Is the Council ready to take the next step and allocate funds to keep the project moving? 
 
What are the next steps? 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  In 2006 the City hired Traffic Analysis and Design to complete the State 
required traffic impact analysis for the highway 60 business park. The study is now 12 years old and needs to 
be updated before the State will consider it. 
 
If we now plan to move ahead with the business park, staff recommends we retain Traffic Analysis and Design 
to complete the traffic study update, as the highway 60 improvements are a major cost component of the 
business park development. Once the State has reviewed the updated traffic information, they will define the 
requirements of the phase two traffic study, which will determine the level of improvements for highway 60.   
 

 
 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 

 
 
BUDGETARY IMPACT:   Dependent upon extent of work to be done 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   Traffic impact study proposal, Map – potential Business Park Layout 
 
 
 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Council Member John Czarnecki 
 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Council Member Czarnecki, Christy or Tom Wiza 
 
      

 

 

 

Page 82 of 138



Page 83 of 138



Page 84 of 138



Page 85 of 138



Page 86 of 138



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: March 26, 2018                                                                      ITEM NO:  8. D. 
 
 
TITLE: Consider bids received for the 2018 Street and Utility Contract; and action thereon 
 
    
ISSUE SUMMARY: Staff advertised for and received bids for the 2018 Street and Utility Construction 
Contract. A total of three bids were received, with the low bid coming from Vinton Construction Company, Inc. 
in the amount of $1,337,502.25. The bidding was very competitive, although construction prices in general are 
on the rise.  
 
Vinton Construction has successfully completed similar projects for Cedarburg in the past.     
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends award of the 2018 Street and Utility Construction 
Contract to Vinton Construction Inc. on the basis of their low unit price bid of $1,337,502.25.     
 
 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The March meeting of the Public 
Works and Sewerage Commission was cancelled due to lack of a quorum, and thus there is no Commission 
recommendation.   
 
 
 
BUDGETARY IMPACT: This years’ project is heavily weighted toward street reconstruction, with some 
storm sewer work. There is very minimal sanitary sewer and water utility work involved. Given that the street 
budget had to pick up the full cost of engineering services, preconstruction tree pruning, and soil borings, staff 
recommends adding to the planned capital borrowing in the amount of $45,000 for streets and $55,000 for 
storm sewer. 
 
  
ATTACHMENTS: Bid tabulation spreadsheet                                  
                                  Breakdown by budget                                  
                                  Map of streets to be reconstructed 
                                   
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza 
 
 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza-Director of Engineering and Public Works 
                                                                262-375-7610 

 
 

 

Page 87 of 138



City of Cedarburg 2018 Street & Utility Project - Bid Tab

Item # Description Units Quantity Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

1 Paving Mobilizations EA 2 900.00$          1,800.00$              900.00$          1,800.00$              400.00$          800.00$                 

2 Traffic Control LS 1 32,000.00$     32,000.00$            12,000.00$     12,000.00$            26,625.00$     26,625.00$            

3 Common Excavation CY 10,200 16.50$             168,300.00$         14.23$             145,146.00$         13.41$             136,782.00$         

4 Geogrid SY 2,500 2.00$               5,000.00$              2.00$               5,000.00$              2.25$               5,625.00$              

5 1-1/4" Dense Graded Base Course TON 4,800 9.95$               47,760.00$            8.75$               42,000.00$            12.97$             62,256.00$            

6 3" Dense Graded Base Course TON 6,100 14.00$             85,400.00$            12.44$             75,884.00$            14.29$             87,169.00$            

7 Finish Grading SY 34,500 0.60$               20,700.00$            0.60$               20,700.00$            0.89$               30,705.00$            

8 Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement TON 10,950 50.75$             555,712.50$         50.75$             555,712.50$         50.30$             550,785.00$         

9 Tack Coat GAL 2,300 1.75$               4,025.00$              1.75$               4,025.00$              1.90$               4,370.00$              

10 18"-30" Concrete Curb & Gutter Remove & Replace LF 1,600 32.00$             51,200.00$            30.80$             49,280.00$            36.00$             57,600.00$            

11 30" Type J Concrete Curb & Gutter LF 160 32.00$             5,120.00$              35.00$             5,600.00$              26.00$             4,160.00$              

12 5" Concrete Sidewalk Remove & Replace SF 3,600 7.00$               25,200.00$            6.15$               22,140.00$            5.60$               20,160.00$            

13 7" Concrete Sidewalk/Driveway Remove & Replace SY 100 7.50$               750.00$                 60.50$             6,050.00$              52.80$             5,280.00$              

14 Curb Ramp Detectable Warning Field (24"x48") EA 14 225.00$          3,150.00$              290.00$          4,060.00$              230.00$          3,220.00$              

15 Sawing Pavement LF 500 2.00$               1,000.00$              2.00$               1,000.00$              2.25$               1,125.00$              

16 Water for Dust Control MGAL 100 20.00$             2,000.00$              40.00$             4,000.00$              45.00$             4,500.00$              

17 Restoration SY 1,000 6.75$               6,750.00$              4.25$               4,250.00$              7.00$               7,000.00$              

18 4" Underdrain LF 350 13.20$             4,620.00$              28.00$             9,800.00$              30.00$             10,500.00$            

19 6" PVC SDR 35 Storm Lateral w/ Granular Backfill LF 100 33.60$             3,360.00$              60.00$             6,000.00$              45.00$             4,500.00$              

20 10"x6" Yard Drain EA 1 865.00$          865.00$                 1,850.00$       1,850.00$              576.00$          576.00$                 

21 12" RCP Storm Sewer Pipe CL V w/ Granular Backfill LF 555 57.80$             32,079.00$            78.00$             43,290.00$            98.00$             54,390.00$            

22 15" RCP Storm Sewer Pipe CL IV w/ Granular Backfill LF 265 59.55$             15,780.75$            89.00$             23,585.00$            99.00$             26,235.00$            

23 2'x3' Catch Basin with Casting EA 50 2,314.00$       115,700.00$         2,950.00$       147,500.00$         2,650.00$       132,500.00$         

24 48" Storm Manhole with Casting EA 11 3,024.00$       33,264.00$            3,450.00$       37,950.00$            3,150.00$       34,650.00$            

25 72" Storm Manhole with Casting EA 3 4,377.00$       13,131.00$            5,800.00$       17,400.00$            3,850.00$       11,550.00$            

26 12" Apron Endwall EA 1 415.00$          415.00$                 550.00$          550.00$                 350.00$          350.00$                 

27 Type C Inlet Protection EA 57 50.00$             2,850.00$              35.00$             1,995.00$              50.00$             2,850.00$              

28 Erosion Matting (Class 1, Type B) SY 10 20.00$             200.00$                 20.00$             200.00$                 20.00$             200.00$                 

29 Valve Box Top Section Replacement EA 27 250.00$          6,750.00$              320.00$          8,640.00$              125.00$          3,375.00$              

30 Abandon Water Manhole and Install Valve Box EA 3 700.00$          2,100.00$              1,520.00$       4,560.00$              650.00$          1,950.00$              

31 Extend San. Sewer, Replace MH, & Reconnect Lats EA 3 7,532.00$       22,596.00$            14,080.00$     42,240.00$            15,400.00$     46,200.00$            

32 Repair Sanitary Manhole Bench & Form Flowlines EA 1 1,200.00$       1,200.00$              1,850.00$       1,850.00$              650.00$          650.00$                 

33 Existing Sanitary Manhole Chimney Repair EA 50 896.00$          44,800.00$            750.00$          37,500.00$            550.00$          27,500.00$            

34 Existing Storm Manhole Chimney Repair EA 26 474.00$          12,324.00$            720.00$          18,720.00$            400.00$          10,400.00$            

35 Existing Manhole Adjustment EA 24 400.00$          9,600.00$              480.00$          11,520.00$            350.00$          8,400.00$              

Total =  1,337,502.25$      Total =  1,373,797.50$      Total =  1,384,938.00$      

Supplemental Unit Prices

Item # Description Units Quantity Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

36 Rock Excavation CY 300.00$          250.00$          510.00$          

37 8" Water Main Offset w/ Granular Backfill EA 5,370.00$       10,000.00$     4,750.00$       

38 10' x 10' Dirt Bag EA 500.00$          250.00$          300.00$          

39 Slurry Backfill CY 150.00$          150.00$          130.00$          

Vinton Construction Company Stark Pavement Corporation Denny Rahn Excavating Inc.

Vinton Construction Company Stark Pavement Corporation Denny Rahn Excavating Inc.

Page 88 of 138



Item # Description Units Quantity Unit Price Total

1 Paving Mobilizations EA 2 900.00$        1,800.00$           

2 Traffic Control LS 1 32,000.00$  32,000.00$        

3 Common Excavation CY 10,200 16.50$          168,300.00$      

4 Geogrid SY 2,500 2.00$            5,000.00$           

5 1-1/4" Dense Graded Base Course TON 4,800 9.95$            47,760.00$        

6 3" Dense Graded Base Course TON 6,100 14.00$          85,400.00$        

7 Finish Grading SY 34,500 0.60$            20,700.00$        

8 Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement TON 10,950 50.75$          555,712.50$      

9 Tack Coat GAL 2,300 1.75$            4,025.00$           

10 18"-30" Concrete Curb & Gutter Remove & Replace LF 1,600 32.00$          51,200.00$        

11 30" Type J Concrete Curb & Gutter LF 160 32.00$          5,120.00$           

12 5" Concrete Sidewalk Remove & Replace SF 3,600 7.00$            25,200.00$        

13 7" Concrete Sidewalk/Driveway Remove & Replace SY 100 7.50$            750.00$              

14 Curb Ramp Detectable Warning Field (24"x48") EA 14 225.00$        3,150.00$           

15 Sawing Pavement LF 500 2.00$            1,000.00$           

16 Water for Dust Control MGAL 100 20.00$          2,000.00$           

17 Restoration SY 1,000 6.75$            6,750.00$           

27 Type C Inlet Protection EA 57 50.00$          2,850.00$           

Total =  1,018,717.50$   

Item # Description Units Quantity Unit Price Total

18 4" Underdrain LF 350 13.20$          4,620.00$           

19 6" PVC SDR 35 Storm Lateral w/ Granular Backfill LF 100 33.60$          3,360.00$           

20 10"x6" Yard Drain EA 1 865.00$        865.00$              

21 12" RCP Storm Sewer Pipe CL V w/ Granular Backfill LF 555 57.80$          32,079.00$        

22 15" RCP Storm Sewer Pipe CL IV w/ Granular Backfill LF 265 59.55$          15,780.75$        

23 2'x3' Catch Basin with Casting EA 50 2,314.00$     115,700.00$      

24 48" Storm Manhole with Casting EA 11 3,024.00$     33,264.00$        

25 72" Storm Manhole with Casting EA 3 4,377.00$     13,131.00$        

26 12" Apron Endwall EA 1 415.00$        415.00$              

28 Erosion Matting (Class 1, Type B) SY 10 20.00$          200.00$              

34 Existing Storm Manhole Chimney Repair EA 26 474.00$        12,324.00$        

35 Existing Manhole Adjustment EA 24 400.00$        9,600.00$           

Total =  241,338.75$      

Item # Description Units Quantity Unit Price Total

29 Valve Box Top Section Replacement EA 27 250.00$        6,750.00$           

30 Abandon Water Manhole and Install Valve Box EA 3 700.00$        2,100.00$           

Total =  8,850.00$          

Item # Description Units Quantity Unit Price Total

31 Extend San. Sewer, Replace MH, & Reconnect Lats EA 3 7,532.00$     22,596.00$        

32 Repair Sanitary Manhole Bench & Form Flowlines EA 1 1,200.00$     1,200.00$           

33 Existing Sanitary Manhole Chimney Repair EA 50 896.00$        44,800.00$        

Total =  68,596.00$        

TOTAL = 1,337,502.25$   

Streets

Storm Sewer

Water 

Wastewater

Page 89 of 138



Page 90 of 138



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:   March 26, 2018                                                                  ITEM NO:  8. E. 

                           

TITLE:   Consider writing off uncollectible receivables in the Risk Management Fund; and action thereon 

 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   There were two traffic accidents that caused damage to traffic signals, one in 2012 and 

the other in 2014, $3,726.17 and $2,534.25 respectively.  The responsible parties did not have insurance to 

cover the damage and never made arrangements to pay the bills.  Last year, in working with the Police 

Department we determined these invoices were uncollectible.  They both were processed through the court 

system but were not ordered to pay for the damage they caused.  The signal replacements were funded by the 

Risk Management Fund. 

 

According to our City policy, any invoice over $2,000 may only be written off with the approval of the 

Common Council.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Write off outstanding invoices, Policy FC-9:  Writing Off Uncollectible 

Receivables 

 

 
 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  None, already accounted for in prior year expenditures through insurance fund. 

 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   copies of invoices 8937 and 10288 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Christy Mertes 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, 375-7606 

 
      

 

 

 

Page 91 of 138



Page 92 of 138



Page 93 of 138



ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Risk Management Fund
2017 Financial Report

DATE NAME INVOICE AMOUNT STATUS PURPOSE

2/3/2012 Brad Lambrecht 8937 3,726.17
to be written off 
as uncollectable Replace traffic light

2/18/2014 Tyson Jacobs 10288 2,534.25
to be written off 
as uncollectable Replace traffic signal

Total $6,260.42

Account No. 700-131000

G - 5
Page 94 of 138



                     CITY OF CEDARBURG                                            
POLICY/PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 
SUBJECT: WRITING OFF UNCOLLECTIBLE RECEIVABLES FC-9 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
General:  The City bills various groups for use of City facilities, labor provided 

or other services.   Occasionally, these bills are not paid.  This policy 
is to address circumstances when account receivables are not 
collectible. 

         
Procedures:  1. The City Treasurer’s Office issues invoices to individuals/groups 

for the services provided.  The invoice is payable thirty (30) days 
from the date of invoice.  After the thirty (30) days, the invoice will 
accrue interest at 18% per annum. 

 
2. Invoices one month past due will be sent a reminder to submit 

payment with the additional amount of interest due. 
 

  3. Four attempts will be made to collect the payment.  Every thirty 
(30) days the accounts will be reviewed by the 
Accountant II/Accounts Receivable employee.  The employee will 
make a recommendation to the City Administrator/Treasurer. The 
City Administrator/Treasurer will review and approve. 

 
4. Upon written request, payment plans can be arranged to ensure 

full payment of the invoice. The approval of the City                     
Administrator/Treasurer is required. 

 
5. Invoices to individuals/groups located in the City of Cedarburg 

with any past due amounts as of November 15 will be placed on 
the tax roll as a lien against the property. 

 
6. When the amount of the invoice is $2,000 or less, and has been 

determined to be uncollectible, the City Administrator/Treasurer 
will have the authority to approve writing off an invoice as 
uncollectible. 

 
7. When the amount is larger than $2,000 and determined to be 

uncollectible, Common Council approval will be required to 
write-off an invoice. 

 
 
         Adopted:  9/30/2002 
         Revised:  7/28/2008 

Page 95 of 138



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: March 26, 2018                                                            ITEM NO:   8. F. 

 

                           

TITLE:   Consider Ordinance No. 2018-04 amending Sec. 11-2-7 of the Municipal Code pertaining to the 

placement of chairs in advance of the annual 4
th

 of July parade; and action thereon 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   It has been the policy to allow placement of chairs and other items on Washington 

Avenue sidewalks no earlier than 7 p.m. the night before the 4
th

 of July parade.  This has not been codified, 

which has created confusion for City Hall and Police Department employees.  This ordinance serves to codify 

the past practice. 

 

The ordinance was reviewed by Chief Frank. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    N/A 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   N/A 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  None 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:     Ord. 2018-04, Council Minutes 02-25-02 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:     Connie McHugh, City Clerk 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Connie McHugh 
 
 
 

 

Page 96 of 138



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-04 

 

An Ordinance Relating Blocking of Sidewalks 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby ordains as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Section 11-2-7 of the Municipal Code of the City of Cedarburg is hereby 

amended as follows: 

 

SEC. 11-2-7 OBSTRUCTING STREETS AND SIDEWALKS PROHIBITED.  

 

(a)  Obstructing Streets. No person shall stand, sit, loaf or loiter or engage in any sport or 

exercise on any public street, bridge or public ground within the City in such manner as 

to prevent or obstruct the free passage of pedestrian or vehicular traffic thereon or to 

prevent or hinder free ingress or egress to or from any place of business or amusement, 

church, public hall or meeting place.  

(b)  Blocking Sidewalk Prohibited. No person shall block any sidewalk by obstructing the 

same so that it is impossible for a pedestrian to travel along the sidewalk without leaving 

the sidewalk and walking on adjacent property or on the street.  Chairs and other like 

obstacles for viewing of the 4
th

 of July parade shall not be placed on any sidewalk prior to 

7:00 p.m. the night before the parade.  No items shall be affixed or attached to any trees,   

plantings, or fixtures in the right-of-way. 

 

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as 

provided by law. 

 Passed and adopted this 26
th
 day of March, 2018. 

 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Kip Kinzel, Mayor    

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  

 

 

 

Page 97 of 138



Page 98 of 138



Page 99 of 138



Page 100 of 138



Page 101 of 138



Page 102 of 138



Page 103 of 138



Page 104 of 138



Page 105 of 138



Page 106 of 138



Page 107 of 138



Page 108 of 138



Page 109 of 138



Page 110 of 138



Page 111 of 138



Page 112 of 138



Page 113 of 138



Page 114 of 138



Page 115 of 138



Page 116 of 138



Page 117 of 138



Submittal of Annual Reports and other Compliance Documents for Municipal 

Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permits

NOTE: Missing or incomplete fields are highlighted at the bottom of each page.  You may save, close and return to your draft permit as often as necessary to complete 

your application.  After 120 days your draft is deleted.

Required Attachments and Supplemental Information 

Please complete the contents of each tab to submit your MS4 permit compliance document. The information 

included in this checklist is necessary for a complete submittal. A complete and detailed submittal will help us 

review about your MS4 permit document. To help us make a decision in the shortest amount of time possible, the 

following information must be submitted:

� Review related web site and instructions for Municipal storm water permit eReporting [Exit Form]

� Attach the following items as appropriate using the attachments tab above

� Construction Site Pollution Control Annual Report Summary

� Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Annual Report Summary

� Leaf and Yard Waste Management

� Municipal Cooperation Attachment

� Municipal Facility Inspections

� Pollution Prevention Annual Report Summary

� Post-Construction Storm Water Management Annual Report Summary

� Public Education and Outreach Annual Report Summary 

� Public Involvement and Participation Annual Report Summary

� Storm Water Consortium/Group Report

� Storm Sewer Map Annual Report Attachment

� Storm Water Quality Management Annual Report Attachment

� TMDL Attachment

� Winter Road Maintenance

� Other Annual Report Attachment

� Complete  all required forms and upload required attachments

� Sign and Submit form

Reporting Information 

 Submittal Type: Annual Report

 Project Name: City of Cedarburg MS4 Compliance Annual Report

County: Ozaukee

Municipality: Cedarburg City

Facility Number: 25526

Reporting Year: 2017

Annual Report

Page 118 of 138



Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Form 3400-224 (09/17)

Note: Compliance items must be submitted using the Attachments tab.

Municipal Contact Information- Complete

Notice: Pursuant to s. NR 216.07(8), Wis. Adm. Code, an owner or operator of a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) is 

required to submit an annual report to the Department of Natural Resources (Department) by March 31 of each year to report on 

activities for the previous calendar year (“reporting year”). This form is being provided by the Department for the user’s convenience for 

reporting on activities undertaken in each reporting year of the permit term. Personal information collected will be used for 

administrative purposes and may be provided to the extent required by Wisconsin’s Open Records Law [ss. 19.31-19.39, Wis. Stats.].

Municipality Information 

Name of Municipality Cedarburg City

Facility ID # or (FIN): 25526

Updated Information: Check to update mailing address information      

Mailing Address: P O Box 49

Mailing Address 2: W63 N645 Washington Avenue

City: Cedarburg

State: Wisconsin

Zip Code:  xxxxx  or xxxxx-xxxx53012-0049

Does the municipality rely on another government entity to satisfy some of the permit requirements?

 Yes    No      Unsure

Has there been any changes to the municipality’s participation in group efforts towards permit compliances (i.e., 

the municipality has added or dropped consortium membership)?

 Yes    No   Unsure

Primary Municipal Contact Person  (Authorized Representative for MS4 Permit)

Select to create new  primary contact 

First Name: Thomas

Last Name: Wiza

Select to update  current contact information  

Title: Dir. of Public Works

Mailing Address: PO Box 49

Mailing Address 2: W63 N645 Washington Avenue

City: Cedarburg

State: WI

Zip Code: xxxxx  or xxxxx-xxxx53012-0049

Phone Number: Ext: xxx-xxx-xxxx262-375-7610

Email: twiza@ci.cedarburg.wi.us

Page 119 of 138



Additional Contacts Information (Optional)  

Individual with responsibility for:

(Check all that apply)

 I&E Program     

 IDDE Program   

 IDDE Response Procedure Manual  

 Municipal-wide Water Quality Plan  

 Ordinances

 Pollution Prevention Program  

 Post-Construction Program  

 Winter roadway maintenance

First Name:

Last Name:

Title:

Mailing Address:

Mailing Address 2:

City:

State:

Zip Code: xxxxx  or xxxxx-xxxx

Phone Number: Ext: xxx-xxx-xxxx

Email:

Missing Information

Page 120 of 138



Form 3400-224 (09/17)

Minimum Control Measures- Section 1 : 

a. Complete the following information on Public Education and Outreach Activities related to storm 

water. Select the Mechanism that best describes how the topic message was conveyed to your 

population. Use the Add Activity to add multiple Mechanisms. For Quantity, choose the range for the 

number of Mechanisms chosen (i.e., number of workshops, events). Quantity and Estimated People 

reached are both optional.

Topic: Detection and elimination of illicit discharges

Topic: Management of materials that may cause storm water pollution from automobiles, pet waste, 

household hazardous waste and household practices

Topic: Beneficial onsite reuse of leaves and grass clippings/proper use of lawn and garden fertilizers 

and pesticides

Topic: Management of stream banks and shorelines by riparian landowners to minimize erosion and 

restore and enhance the ecological value of waterways

Topic: Infiltration of residential storm water runoff from rooftop downspouts, driveways and 

Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Complete

1. Public Education and Outreach

Mechanism Quantity
(optional)

Est. People Reached 
(optional)

Regional Effort?
(optional)

Passive print media (brochures at front 

desk, posters, etc.)

10 - 19 100 Yes  No

Government event (public hearing, 

council meeting, etc.)

1 - 9 20 Yes  No

Signage 100 + 100 Yes  No

Passive print media (brochures at front 

desk, posters, etc.)

10 - 19 100 Yes  No

Government event (public hearing, 

council meeting, etc.)

1 - 9 20 Yes  No

Website 1 - 9 500 Yes  No

Other 1 - 9 1000 Yes  No

Passive print media (brochures at front 

desk, posters, etc.)

10 - 19 100 Yes  No

Government event (public hearing, council 

meeting, etc.)

1 - 9 20 Yes  No

Other 1 - 9 1000 Yes  No

Website 1 - 9 1000 Yes  No

Direct one-on-one communication 1 - 9 5 Yes  No

Page 121 of 138



sidewalks 

Topic: Inform and where appropriate educate those responsible for the design, installation, and 

maintenance of construction site erosion control practices and storm water management facilities on 

how to design, install and maintain the practices

Topic: Identify businesses and activities that may pose a storm water contamination concern, and 

where appropriate, educate specific audiences on methods of storm water pollution prevention

Topic: Promote environmentally sensitive land development designs by developers and designers, 

including green infrastructure and low impact development

Topic: Other  (describe): 

b. Any other Public Education and Outreach program information for inclusion in the Annual Report 

may be added here or attached on the attachments page.

Form 3400-224 (09/17)

Minimum Control Measures - Section 2 : 

a. Describe how the municipality has kept the following local officials and municipal staff apprised of 

Passive print media (brochures at front 

desk, posters, etc.)

10 - 19 100 Yes  No

Government event (public hearing, council 

meeting, etc.)

1 - 9 20 Yes  No

Website 1 - 9 1000 Yes  No

Mechanism Quantity
(optional)

Est. People Reached 
(optional)

Regional Effort?
(optional)

Direct one-on-one communication 1 - 9 10 Yes  No

Website 1 - 9 100 Yes  No

Targeted group training (contractors, 

consultants, etc.)

1 - 9 10 Yes  No

Direct one-on-one communication 1 - 9 10 Yes  No

Website 1 - 9 100 Yes  No

Direct one-on-one communication 1 - 9 10 Yes  No

Sweetwater, Mid-Moraine Water Quality Collective

Missing Information

Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Complete

2. Public Involvement and Participation

Page 122 of 138



the municipal storm water discharge permit programs and its requirements.

Elected Officials

Municipal Officials

Appropriate Staff

b. Complete the following information on Public Involvement Activities related to storm water. Select 

the mechanism that best describes how the topic message was conveyed to your population. Use the 

Add Activity to add multiple mechanisms. For Quantity, choose the range for number Mechanisms 

chosen (i.e., number of workshops, events). Quantity and Estimated People reached are both 

optional .

Topic: Storm Water Management Plan and/or updates

Topic: Storm water related ordinance and/or updates

Topic: MS4 Annual Report

Topic: Volunteer Opportunities

Topic: Other (describe) :  

c. Any other Public Involvement and Participation program information for inclusion in the Annual 

Report may be added here or attached on the attachments page

Review of annual storm water report and illicit discharge detection and elimination 

report. 

Mayor and Common Council Members

Public Works and Wastewater Superintendents

Mechanism Quantity
(optional)

Est. People Reached
(optional)

Regional Effort?
(optional)

Government Event (Public Hearing, 

Council Meeting, etc)

1 - 9 20 Yes  No

Government Event (Public Hearing, 

Council Meeting, etc)

1 - 9 20 Yes  No

Government Event (Public Hearing, 

Council Meeting, etc)

1 - 9 20 Yes  No

Website 1 - 9 100 Yes  No

Sweet Water Respect Our Waters supporting member

Presentation of Storm Water Information 1 - 9 100000 Yes  No

City stocks 16 different informational storm water brochures in a rotating display rack 

at City Hall. Brochures are free for the taking and restocked as necessary.

Page 123 of 138



Form 3400-224 (09/17)

Minimum Control Measures - Section 3 : 

Form 3400-224 (09/17)

Minimum Control Measures - Section 4 : 

Missing Information

Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Complete

3. Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination

a. How many total outfalls does the municipality have? 40 Unsure

b.  How many outfalls did the municipality evaluate as part 

of their routine ongoing field screening program?
4 Unsure

c. How many were confirmed illicit discharges? 1 Unsure

d. How many illicit discharge complaints did the 

municipality receive?
2 Unsure

e. How many were confirmed illicit discharges? 2 Unsure

f. How many of the identified Illicit discharges did the 

municipality eliminate in the reporting year?
2 Unsure

g. How many of the following enforcement mechanisms did the municipality 

use to enforce its illicit discharge ordinance?

Unsure

Verbal Warning 2

Written Warning (including email) 2

Notice of Violation

Civil Penalty/ Citation

h. Any other Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination program information for 

inclusion in the Annual Report may be added here or attached on the attachments 

page.

2017  Illicit Discharge Detection & Elimination Program Annual Report prepared by AECOM.

Missing Information

Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Complete

4. Construction Site Pollutant Control

a. How many total construction sites were active at any point 

in the reporting year?
35 Unsure

b. How many construction sites did the municipality issue 

permits for in the reporting year?
34 Unsure

c. Do the above numbers include sites <1 acre? Yes No UnsurePage 124 of 138



Form 3400-224 (09/17)

Minimum Control Measures - Section 5 : 

d. How many erosion control inspections did the municipality 

complete in the reporting year?
52 Unsure

e. What types of enforcement actions does the municipality have available 

to compel compliance with the regulatory mechanism? Check all that 

apply and enter the number of each used in the reporting year.

Unsure

 Verbal Warning 18

 Written Warning (including email) 2

 Notice of Violation

 Civil Penalty/ Citation

 Stop Work Order

 Forfeiture of Deposit

 No Authority

 Other - Describe below

f. Any other Construction Site Pollutant Control program information for inclusion in 

the Annual Report may be added here or attached on the attachments page.

Private developers often assign the construction inspector to complete weekly erosion control 

inspections. These inspections are not reflected in our numbers.

Missing Information

Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Complete

5. Post-Construction Storm Water Management

a. How many new construction sites with new structural storm 

water management practices have received local approvals ?
3 Unsure

b. How many privately owned storm water facility inspections 

were completed in the reporting year ?

Unsure

c. What types of enforcement actions does the municipality have available 

to compel compliance with the regulatory mechanism?  Check all that 

apply and enter the number of each used in the reporting year.

Unsure

 Verbal Warning 2

 Written Warning (including email) 1

 Notice of Violation 0

 Civil Penalty/ Citation

 Forfeiture of Deposit 0Page 125 of 138



Form 3400-224 (09/17)

 Complete maintenance 0

 Bill responsible part 0

 No Authority

 Other - Describe below

d. Any other Post-Construction Storm Water Management program information for 

inclusion in the Annual Report may be added here or attached on the attachments 

page.

The City Construction Site Erosion Control and Storm Water Management Ordinances were 

updated in 2017 and are attached.

Missing Information

Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Minimum Control Measures - Section 6 : Complete

6. Pollution Prevention

Storm Water Management Facility Inspections (ponds, biofilters, etc.)    Not Applicable

a. Enter the total number of municipally owned or operated 

structural storm water facilities ?
15 Unsure

b. How many new municipally owned storm water facilities were 

installed in the reporting year ?
0 Unsure

c. How many municipally owned storm water devices were inspected 

in the reporting year?
10 Unsure

d. How many of these facilities required maintenance?

If so, attach report on attachments page.
10 Unsure

Public Works Yards & Other Municipally Owned Properties (SWPPP Plan Review)  Not Applicable

e. How many inspections of municipal properties been conducted in 

the reporting year?
4 Unsure

f. Have amendments to the SWPPPs been made?           Yes No  Unsure

Collection Services - Street Sweeping / Cleaning Program  Not Applicable

g. Did the municipality conduct street sweeping/cleaning during the reporting year?

Yes  No Unsure

h. If known, how many tons of material was removed? 200 Unsure

i. If street cleaning is identified as a storm water best management practice in the 

pollutant loading analysis, was street cleaning completed at the assumed frequency?

Yes Page 126 of 138



*Note: We are requesting information that goes beyond the reporting year, answer the best you can.

No - Explain

Not Applicable

Unsure

Collection Services - Catch Basin Sump Cleaning Program  Not Applicable

j. Did the municipality conduct catch basin sump cleaning during the reporting year?

Yes  No Unsure

k. How many catch basin sumps were cleaned in the reporting year? 651 Unsure

l. If known, how many tons of material was removed? 110 Unsure

m. If catch basin sump cleaning is identified as a storm water best management 

practice in the pollutant loading analysis, was cleaning completed at the assumed 

frequency?

Yes

No - Explain  

Crews cleaned about 30% of the total catch basins. City purchased a new 

$300,000 vacuum/jetter in 2017 and there were equipment warranty 

issues that created downtime. The City will strive to clean the majority of 

catch basins annually going forward.

Not Applicable

Unsure

Collection Services - Leaf Collection Program  Not Applicable

n. Does the municipality conduct curbside leaf collection? Yes  No 

Unsure

o. Does the municipality notify homeowners about pickup? Yes  No 

Unsure

Where are the residents directed to store the leaves for collection?

Pile on terrace  Pile in street  Bags on terrace  Unsure 

Other - Describe  

Cedarburg provides a leaf, brush, and yard waste drop off site 

that is open to residents 6 days per week, 12 hours per day.

p. What is the frequency of collection? 

weekly on average

q. Is collection followed by street sweeping/cleaning? Yes  No 

Unsure

Winter Road Management  Not Applicable

r. How many lane-miles of roadway is the municipality 

responsible for doing snow and ice control?
Unsure111

s. Provide amount of de-icing products used by month last winter season?

Solids (tons) (ex. sand, or salt-sand)
Page 127 of 138



w. Any other Pollution Prevention program information for inclusion in the Annual Report may be 

added here or attached on the attachments page.

Form 3400-224 (09/17)

Minimum Control Measures - Section 7 : 

 Oct   Nov Dec   Jan   Feb   March* 0 0 193 153 221 280

 Liquids (gallons) (ex. brine)

Oct   Nov Dec   Jan   Feb   March* 0 0 4000 1500 0 0

t Was salt applying machinery calibrated in the reporting year? Yes  No 

Unsure

u. Have municipal personnel attended salt reduction strategy 

training in the reporting year?

Yes  No 

Unsure

If yes, describe what training was provided:

Speaker addressed spreader calibration and covered proper use of anti-icing, deicing, and pre-

wetting liquids to reduce salt usage.

When:      How many attended:11/15/2017 18

Internal (Staff) Education & Communication

v. Have training or education on SWPPPs for municipal facilities 

been held for municipal or other personnel?

Yes  No 

Unsure

If yes, describe what training was provided

When:     How many attended:  

Additional Pollution Prevention Information

Missing Information

Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Complete

7. Storm Sewer System Map

a. Did the municipality update their storm sewer map this year? Yes No Unsure

If yes, check the areas the map items that got updated or changed:

 Storm water treatment facilities

 Storm pipes

 Vegetated swales

 Outfalls

 Other - Describe below

b. Any other Storm Sewer System Map information for inclusion in the Annual Report 

may be added here or attached on the attachments page.
Page 128 of 138



Page 129 of 138



Form 3400-224 (09/17)

Final Evaluation -

Fiscal Analysis

Complete the fiscal analysis table provided below. For municipalities that do not break out funding 

into permit program elements, please enter the monetary amount to your best estimate of what 

funding may be going towards these programs.

Element:  Public Education and Outreach

Element:  Public Involvement and Participation

Element:  Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 

Element:  Construction Site Pollutant Control 

Element:   Post-Construction Storm Water Management

Element:   Pollution Prevention

Element:  Storm Water Quality Management

Element:  Storm Sewer System Map 

Other (describe) 

Missing Information

Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Complete

Annual 

Expenditure

Reporting Year

Budget

Reporting Year

Budget

Upcoming Year

Source of Funds

3,000 3,000 3,000 General revenue fund

1,000 1,000 1,000 General revenue fund

5,000 5,000 5,000 General revenue fund

5,000 5,000 5000 Permit fee and/or deposit/escrow

2,000 2,000 2,000 General revenue fund

5,000 5,000 5,000 General revenue fund

10,000 10,000 10,000 General revenue fund

5,000 5,000 5,000 General revenue fund

Sweet Water, Mid-Moraine Water Quality Collective, League of Mun.Page 130 of 138



Water Quality

a: Were there any known water quality improvements or degradation in the receiving waters to 

which the municipality’s storm sewer system directly discharges to?   

Yes  No Unsure          If Yes, explain below:

b: Have any of the receiving waters that the municipality discharges to been added to the impaired 

waters list during the reporting year?

Yes No  Unsure

c: Has the municipality evaluated their storm water practices to reduce the pollutants of concern?

Yes  No  Unsure

Additional Information

Based on the municipality’s storm water program evaluation in Part II, describe any proposed 

changes to the municipality’s storm water program.

578 578 573 General revenue fund

5,000 5,000 5,000 General revenue fund

400 400 400 General revenue fund

Mercury Marine completed a $25,000,000 dredging of Cedar Creek to remove PCB's

Cedarburg drafted and passed new Storm Water Management and Erosion Control 

Ordinances. (see attached)

Page 131 of 138



Form 3400-224 (09/17)

Requests for Assistance on Improving Permit Programs

Would municipality like the Department to contact them about providing more information on 

developing or improving any of the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Permit programs? 

Please select all that apply:

Public Education and Outreach 

Public Involvement

Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination

Post-Construction Storm Water Management

Storm Water Quality Management

Storm Sewer System Map

Construction Site Pollutant Control

Pollution Prevention

Water Quality Concerns

Compliance Schedule Items Due

MS4 Program Evaluation

Missing Information

Do not close your work until you SAVE.



Page 132 of 138



Required Attachments and Supplemental Information 

Upload Required Attachments (15 MB per file limit) - Help reduce file size and trouble shoot file uploads

*Required Item

Note: To replace an existing file, use the 'Click here to attach file ' link or press the to delete an item.

Attach Documents

(To remove additional items, use your cursor to hover over the attachment section. When the drop down arrow appears, select remove 

Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Any other MS4 program information for inclusion in the Annual Report may be attached on here. Use 

the Add Additional Attachments to add multiple documents.

AR_IPFIN

File Attachment
2017SweetWaterparticipationletter.pdf

AR_IDDEFIN

File Attachment
2017CedarburgIDDE_Final_Report-r.pdf

AR_IPFIN

File Attachment
ROW_MS4ReportForm.docx

AR_MuniFacInspFIN

File Attachment
PublicWorksfacilityquarterlyinspectionreports-2017.pdf

AR_SWGroupReportFIN

File Attachment
Mid-MoraineWaterQualityCollective.pdf

AR_SWMapFIN

File Attachment
StormMapwSwales2018.pdf

AR_CSPCFIN

File Attachment
ConstructionSiteErosionControlOrd2017-36.pdf

AR_PCSSWFIN

File Attachment
StormwaterMgmtOrd2017-35.pdf

Page 133 of 138



item)

Draft and Share PDF Report with Municipality's Governing Body. 

Press the button below to create a PDF.  The PDF will be sent to the email address associated with the WAMS ID that 

is signed in.  After the annual report has been approved by the governing body, you will have to come back to the MS4 

eReporting system to submit the report to the DNR.

Draft and Share PDF Report with Municipality's Governing Body

Page 134 of 138



Steps to Complete the signature process

1. Read and Accept the Terms and Conditions

2. Press the Submit and Send to the DNR button

NOTE: For security purposes all email correspondence will be sent to the address you used when 

registering your WAMS ID. This may be a different email than that provided in the application. For 

information on your WAMS account click HERE .

Terms and Conditions

Certification: I hereby certify that I am an authorized representative of the municipality covered 

under Cedarburg City  MS4 Permit for which this annual report or other compliance document is 

being submitted, and that the information contained in this submittal and all attachments were 

gathered and prepared under my direction or supervision. Based on my inquiry of the person or 

persons under my direction or supervision involved in the preparation of this document, to the best 

of my knowledge, the information is true, accurate, and complete. I further certify that the 

municipality’s governing body or delegated representatives have reviewed or been apprised of the 

contents of this annual report. I understand that Wisconsin law provides severe penalties for 

submitting false information.

Signee (must check current role prior to accepting terms and conditions)

 Authorized municipal contact using WAMS ID.

 Delegation of Signature Authority ( Form  3500-123 ) for agent signing on the behalf of the 

authorized municipal contact.

 Agent seeking to share this item with authorized municipal contact (authorized municipal 

contact must get WAMS id and complete signature).

After providing the final authorized signature, the system will send an email to the authorized party and any agents.  This email will 

include a copy to the final read only version of this application. 

Do not close your work until you SAVE.

Sign and Submit Your Application

Authorized Signature.

I accept the above

       terms and conditions.

Page 135 of 138



Page 136 of 138



Proclamation 
Municipal Treasurers Appreciation Week 

April 15 - 21, 2018 
 

Whereas, the office of the municipal treasurer is a time honored and vital part of 

local government that impacts the day to day life of citizens throughout the state; 

and   

Whereas, the municipal treasurers provide the necessary financial information to 

governing bodies and agencies at the local, county, and state levels; and 

Whereas, the municipal treasurers administer the procedures and keep the financial 

records that allow governing bodies to carry out its public function efficiently and 

confidently; and 

Whereas, all municipal treasurers are the official custodians responsible for proper 

management and investment of public funds; and 

WHEREAS, the 1853 municipal treasurers and the 72 county treasurers work 

together to collect all property taxes for their own municipalities and counties as 

well as their local schools, technical colleges, and the State; and 

Whereas, municipal treasurers continually strive to improve the administration of 

the responsibilities of the office of the municipal treasurer through participation in 

education programs, seminars, workshops, and conferences across Wisconsin; and 

Whereas, Governor Scott Walker signed a proclamation on February 7, 2018 

declaring April 15 – 21, 2018 as Municipal Treasurers Appreciation Week in 

Wisconsin.  

Now, Therefore, I, Kip Kinzel, Mayor of Cedarburg, do hereby recognize the week of 

April 15 through April 21, 2018, as Municipal Treasurers Week, and further extend 

appreciation to our Municipal Treasurer Christy Mertes, Deputy Treasurer Kelly 

Livingston, and Treasurer’s Office employees Kathy Huebl and Jenny Valenta, and 

to all Municipal Treasurers for the vital services they perform and their exemplary 

dedication to the communities they represent. 

Dated this 26th day of March, 2018 
 
Signed: _______________________________     Attest: _____________________________ 
 

Page 137 of 138



 

 

Whereas, 
 

In 1872 J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of Agriculture that a 

special day be set aside for the planting of trees, and 

Whereas, 
 

this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more than 

a million trees in Nebraska, and 

Whereas,  Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world; and 

Whereas, 

 

trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, cut 

heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce life-

giving oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife, and 

Whereas, 
 

trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel for our 

fires, and countless other wood products; and 

Whereas,  
 

trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of 

business areas, and beautify our community; and  

Whereas, 

 

trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual renewal. 

 

Now, Therefore, I, Kip Kinzel, Mayor of the City of Cedarburg do hereby 

proclaim April 27, 2018 as  

 
in the City of Cedarburg, and urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor 

Day and support efforts to protect our trees and woodlands; and    

Further, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and 

promote the well-being of this and future generations. 

   

Dated this 27th day of April 2018. 

                                                                           _________________________ 

                                                                          Kip Kinzel, Mayor 

Attest: 

___________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Page 138 of 138


	Agenda 03-26-18
	CC Minutes 03-12-18
	Blue Sheet - Rezoning Petition
	Rezoning Petition - Strobel
	2017 Year End Financial Report
	Capital Improvement Projections
	Blue Sheet - Hwy 60 Business Park
	Business Park Traffic Impact Study Proposal
	Map - Potential Business Park Layout
	Blue Sheet - Street & Utility Project
	2018 St  Utility Bid Tab
	2018 street program breakdown by budget
	Map of 2018 street program
	Blue Sheet - Uncollectible Invoices
	Invoices to Write Off
	2017 Risk Accts Rec Report
	Policy - Writing Off Collectibles
	Blue Sheet - Ordinance relating to Sidewalks
	Ord 2018-04 - Sidewalks 4th of July
	Council Minutes 02-25-2002 - 4th of July Parade
	Bills
	CA Report 03 22 18
	Proclamation - Treasurers Week
	Proclamation - Arbor Day



